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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTTCE rS HEREBY GMN THAT THE TWENTY-EIGHTH [28rH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF

THE MEMBERS OT THE COMPANY USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED C'UFSL') w|LL BE HELD ON

SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 28TH,2O24, AT 1O.OO AM OST) AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE

COMPANY SITUATED AT 330, MEZANINE FLOOR, FUNCTIONAL INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, PATPARGANJ,

EAST DELHT-110092 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

In this regard, to consider and thought fit, to pass with or without modification(sl the following

resolution as an ordinary resolution:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial

year ended on March 31, 2024 and the Report of Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors

thereon.

2. TO APPOINT MRS' GEETA GOSWAMT (DrN: 07810522), WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AS

DIRECT

tn this cation(sl the following

resolu

.RESO 2 and other applicable
cable provisionssection

(includ catio rth ng in force), the

DATE:3o /0a/2024
PLACE: DELHI

appoln mi having DIN: 07810522, who retires by rotation and being

eligible for reappointment, eand is hereby approved as Director ofthe Company

BY AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

a Finan Services

S LIMITED
Limited

FOR USHA FINANCIAL SERVICE

*rror#}ifr,S +*#"fr ,ft r6Joi.X"O,i{.,*",'G',P.F,J.&rpanv Secretary or

the company be and are hereby authorized jointly and/or severally to file the necessary e-forms with

the Regiitrai of Companies (R6C) and to do all such acts, deeds and things may be necessary to give

effect to the above resolution."

QSu,

KRITIKA ComPanY Secretary

Company Secretary and Compliance omcer
M. No.: A65161

Ph.: 011-47019079, Email: usha.nblc@gmail.com, Websile: ww.ushalinanclal.com

UFSLlry

ORDINARY BUSINESST

1. ADOPTION OF AUDITED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3157

MARCH,2024ToGETHERwlTHTHEREPoRTSoFTHEDIRECToRSANDAUDIToRSTHEREoN



NOTES:

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member. A proxy in order to be
effective must be lodged at the registered office of the company at least forty eight hours before the
time of the meeting.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty members and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company. A member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting right may appoint
single as proxy and such person cannot act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

Z. Corporate Members intending to send tieir authorised representative to attend the meeting are
advised to send a duly certified copy ofthe Board resolution authorising their representative to attend
and vote at the meeting.

3, All the relevant documents referred to in this AGM Notice, Register of Directors' and Key Managerial
Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170, Register of Contracts or
Arrangements in which Directors are interested is maintained under Section 189 of the Companies
Ac! 2013 and otler documents shall be made available to the Members from whom request is
received on cs@ushafinancial.com through their e-mail address registered with the Company and
same will be available for inspection at AGM.

4. In the event if a Poll for any specific agenda item[s) of the Notice is demanded, members are
requested to communicate their vote to cs(Dushafinancial.com from their e-mail ID registered with the
Company. Since the number of Members in the Company is less than 50, in case any poll is required
during the meeting, itwould be done through show ofhands.

5. Members/ proxies attending the meeting are requested to bring their duly filled attendance slip sent
along with the notice ofAnnual General Meeting at the meeting.

7. A route map along with prominent landmark for easy location to reach the venue of Annual General
Meeting is annexed with the notice ofAnnual General Meeting.

BYAND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
FOR USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Fpf@sha Financiql Services Limited

QgSJar^Z--
KRITIKA COmOanV Secretarv
company Secretary aid C6mpllance'offi cer
M. No.: A65161 DATE:30 /08/2024

PLACE: DELHI

6. Members desirous of getting any information about t}le accounts and operations of the Company are
requested to submit their queries addressed to the Director at least 7 days in advance of the meeting
so that the information called for can be made available at the meeting.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

I HEREBY RECORD MY PRESENCE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY USHA
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED ("THE COMPANYJ HELD ON SATURDAE 28TII DAY OF SEPTEMBER,
2024 AT 10'00 A'M. AT THE REGISTERED oFFIcE oF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT 330, MEZANINE
FLOOR FUNCTIONAL INDUSTRIAL ESTATE PATPARGANJ EAST DELHI DL 110092 IN

Client ID.,..........-...................

No. ofShares held...
FullName ofthe Proxy (in BL0CK LETTERSJ
Member's/ Proxy's Signature..................

Note: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance ofthe meeting hall.
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Full Name of the Member (in BLOCK LETTERS)...................
Regd. Folio No.
DP ID .....................



Form No. MGT-l1
Prory form

[Purcuant ta section 1,05(6) ofthe Companies Act,2073 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, Z0 14J

CIN: U74899D11995P1C068604

Name of the company: USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Registered office: 330, Mezanine Floor Functional Industrial Estate Patparganj East Delhi DL 110092 IN

Name of the member(s): ..............
Registered Address: .....................

Folio No/Client Id:
DP ID: ....................

I/We, being the member (s) of .....-.....-. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name: ........................
2. Address:
3. E-mail Id:
Signature: ................, or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday, 28 ' day of Septembet,2024 at 10.00 A.M. at the registered
office of the Company situated at 330, Mezanine Floor Functional Industrial Estate Patparganj East Delhi DL
110092 IN at a notice and at any adjournment thereofin respect ofsuch resolutions as are indicated below;

Resolution No. AfEx
Stamp

Revenue
1,

2.......

Signed this...... day of ......... 2024

Signature of shareholder ...............
Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered OfIice ofthe Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of t]Ie Meeting.
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Route Map of the Venue of AGM:
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UFSL USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
(Formody fnown As Usha Financial Scryiccs Priyate Limllcd)

Cl : U74899Dtl995P1C068604
Registered ofiics:330, tlczanim Flool, Funclioral lndusl al Eslats, Patpargani, Deml-l10092

Wa Suppott Your Goal,

DIRECTORS'REPORT

To
The Members,

Your Dire-ctors are pleased to present the 2gri Annual Report together with the AuditedFinancial Statements for the Financial year ended on 3fi frlr.-"-n]zOz+.

1. PREAMBLE:

Usha Financial services Limited_ (UFSLJ was incorporated on 16$ day of May 1995 as aPrivate Limited company under Companies Act 195&, .egisteiea as , 
^rr-S"r6JFi*r.irlcompany and got the RBI License on 4,1 day of fanuary"2003. The company has converted

$ stl:I:_fr9m private to pubtic vide revisei Certificate Jtnco.po.ation dated l,z.Lo.zl2z.
T" ulll Annual Report for zoz3-24 covers information on Usha Financiar ServicesLimited's business segments, along with our associated activiiies that enabre short, mediumand long-term value creation.

Vision

To be the market Ieader and abre to empower our customers and businesses to achieve theirfinancial goals through innovative, aicessible ,na .rrio.". centric solutions. We alsoembark upon providing services to unserved sections throuth financiar alliances.

Mission
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To provide innovative, reliable, and accessible financiar sorutions that empowers individuarsand Businesses to achieve their financiar aspirations, *tiil ,,"int ining the higheststandards of integrity, customer service, and social responriUiiity.

MOTO:

.WE 
SUPPORT YOUR GOALS"

Since Inception of this Company, We,ve been driven by one single, purposeful GOAL_
INVESTING IN THE SMALLEST DREAMS.

The period under report comprises from the date of 1st Apr z0z3 to 31"t March 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

ll:,allll.:1 performance of your Company for rhe Financial year ended on 31.t March,zuz+ and the corresponding figures for the Iast year is summarized below:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended
3t.o3.2024

Year Ended
3r.03.2023

Revenue from O erations 6,322.20 4,508.17
Other lncome 73.8 5 55.56
Less : Total Ex enditure 4,691.65 3,L75.23
Profit before Tax 704.40 1,388.50

ncludi CurrentLess: Provision for Taxa tion 425.49 360.07

Ph.: 011-47019079, Emall: usha.nblc@gmail.com, Websile: www.ushalinancial.com

l'9



Deferred &Tax NCI om T fo rea lier eaY rs
Profit after Tax L,278,9L L,O2A.43

foProviS on r rtransfe Sta totu Rese rvery
oN S

2SS.7A 205.69

carrie tod alB shance tee 023.12 8?z.7 4

3. The Board of Directors of the company has approved the constitution of the following
committees in their meeting dated 0 2,a day of l[|y,2024:. Stakeholder Relationship Committee and ,

to Fund (RBI

Balance

3. RESERVE & SURPLUS

The balance of profit & loss account is Rs. 3777.69 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2024 which was
increased by Rs' 1023.13 Lakhs as compared to the previous financiar year. The barance oi
securities Premium is Rs. 4793.02 lakhs as on 31"t Mirch z0z4 which *", in.."".uJ uy nr_
933.6 lakhs as compared to the previous financial year.
The aggregate amount ofRs. 9544.12 lakhs was trinsferred to the balance sheet.

4. STATUTORY RESERVE FUND:

During the year, the company has transferred Rs. 255.78 Lakhs being z0yo of Net profits to
the statutory Reserve in accordance with the provisions of section 45rc of Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

5. PROVISION FOR STANDARD ASSETS;

The company has transferred Rs. 73.99 Lakhs during the year at the rate of o.2so/o as a
provision for Standard Assets.

6. MAIOR EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

No such major event occurred in the company during the period under review. However,
some changes made in the board of directors or key managerial personnel (KMps) of the
company as provided under the respective heading.

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS. IF ANY. AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN iHE EIVD OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR TO VYHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF
THIS REPORT:

The following changes have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the
financial statements relate and the date ofthis Report but their impact on financial position
ofthe company is not determinable:

1. The.company is planning to get its securities listed forthe first time on the sME portal of
National stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). Accordingly, the Initial publicbffering
0Po) had been approved by the Board of Directors of the company in the meeting helJ
on 02nd day of luly, 2024. The Members of the Company approved the same in the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 04tt' day of fuly, 2b24. Subsequently, the
Company has filed Draft Red Herring prospectus (DRHp) on SME portal of NSE on 11,r,
day ofJuly, 2024 for seeking in principar approval and arso appried ior the approvar from
the other respective authorities. The approval ofthe same is still awaited.

2. The Company has issued and allotted SZ,9Z,S4L Equity shares as Bonus shares, The
Board of Directors of the company approved the issue in the Board meeting dated 01"t
day oflune, 2024 and the same had been approved by the members ofthe dompany in
the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 03.d day of fune, 2024. The allotment ias
been approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on l?u day of lune,2024.



8, CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of the business of the company during the financial
year ended March 3L,2024.

9, STATE OF AFFAIRS AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF THE COMPANY

The Company is carrying out the business as Non-Banking Finance Company without
accepting any Public Deposits for which the Certificate of Registration (RBI B-14.02818
dated 04.01.2003J has been obtained from Reserve Bank of India, New Delhi.
r Company's NetWorth has surpassed Rs. 10000 Lakhs in Fy 2023.24
o Gross revenue from operations ofthe Company grew by 28.65y0 to Rs. 6,322.20 Lakhs in

FY ?023-24, company's profitability increased as well.
. PAT stands at Rs. 1278.91 Lakhs that represents 24.36y0 growth from Fy ZZ-23
. The aggregate gross loan portfolio (GLPJ of the Company stood at Rs. 30695.73 Lakhs as

on 31st March, 2024.
. The Company has disbursed the loans of Rs. 31255.43 lakhs during Fy 2023-24 that

includes Electric Vehicle Loans, Agri- Loans and loans to Women Entrepreneur
. Company's capital adequacy ratio comfortably stands at 33.03o/o (against 15%o

prescribed by RBI)
o Company's Leverage Ratio stands at 2.15 times (against 7 times prescribed by RBI). The Company has operations spread on PAN India.

10. DEPOSITS:

The provisions of the Companies Act,20L3 related to the deposits are not applicable to a
non-banking financial company as defined in the Reserve Bank of India Acr,7934 (2 of
1934) registered with the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, it is not applicable.

11. DIVIDEND

In order to undertake and carry on future plans, it is necessary to conserve the resources.
Therefore, the Directors are of the opinion of retaining the profits for the year within the
Company, and thus have not recommended any dividend on equity shares for the year
ended March 31, 2024.

12. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 12 (Twelve) times
during the Financial Year ended March37,2024 that are mentioned below:

2A.04.2023
10.07.2023

20.06.2023

76.09.2023
05.07.2023
25.70.2023

. Initial Public Offering Committee of the Company

4. The re-constitution of the following committees was also approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in their meeting dated O2t'd day of luly, Z0Z4:

. Audit Committee,

. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
o Risk Management committees

5. The Board of Directors consented to adopt new set of Article of Association of the
Company and same had been approved in the Board meeting of the Company held on
02"4 day of |uly,2024.

6. The Board of Directors consented for the change in the existing logo of the Company
from "USHA FINANCIAL" with our tag line "We Support your Goals,, to "UFSL,, with our
tag line "We Support Your Goals" in the Board meeting ofthe Company held on OZ,a day
of |uly,2024.

27.05.2023

17.08.2023



78.t2.2023 03.02.2024 02.03,2024 24.03.2024

The details ofattendance of each Director at the Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting
are given below:

Name ofDirectors Number of Board
Meetin8 held
during the year

Number of Board
Meeting attended
during the year

Attended the
previous AGM
(Yes or No)

Mr. Rajesh Gupta 72 t2 YES

Mr. Anoop Garg 72 YES

Ms. Geeta Goswami LZ YES

Mr. Gauri Shanker 72 10 YES

Mr. Bhupinder Nawar* 0 0 NO

Mrs. Nupur Gupta 72 YES

Mr. Arvind lain 10 8 NO

* Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar resigned from the directorship with effect from 27.04.2023.

13.THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & XXY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED OR
RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR:

As on 31.03.2024, the composition ofthe Board ofDirectors and KMP is as follows:

s
No.

Name Designation DIN/ Mem.
No.

Date of
Appointment

Date of
Cessation,
ifany

1 Mr. Rajesh Gupta Managing
Director

18.03.2015 NA

) Mr. Anoop Garg Executive
Director

o1947572 15.0 6.2 015 NA

3 Ms. Geeta Goswami Executive
Director

07810522 03.05.2077 NA

NAMs. Nupur Gupta Non-Executive
Director

09305281 70.08.2022

Kritika Company
Secretary

ACS65161 03.02.2024 NA

The following changes have taken place in the composition of the Board of Directors and
KMP during the fi nancial year 2023-24:

1. Mr. Bhupinder Nayyar has resigned as an Independent Director of the Company with
effect fr om 27 .0 4.2023.

2. Mr. Rajesh Gupta, Director of the Company having DIN: 01941985 was appointed as the
Managing Director of the Company by the Board of Directors on Board Meeting held on

27th day of May, 2023 and same was also approved in the General Meeting dated
12.06.2023 for a period of 5 years effective from 72.06.2023.

3. Mr. Arvind Kumar Jain has been appointed as an additional director by the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on 27.05.2023 and the same was regularized as an

Independent director in the Extra-ordinary general meeting dated 12.06.?,023.

4. Ms. Neha Sharma, Company Secretary of the Company having Membership No.: 457676
resigned from her designation as Company Secretary with effect from 20th day of

t2
1-2

t2

01941985

4.

5.



lanuary,2024 and. Ms. Kritika was appointed as new Company Secretary ofthe Company
having Membership No.: A65161 by the Board of Directors in Board Meeting held on
03rd day of February,2024 with immediate effect.

5. Mr. Arvind Jain and Mr. Gauri Shankar, lndependent Directors of the Company have

tendered his resignation vide letter dated 02nd day of March, 2024 and same is accepted

by the Company in the meeting of Board of Directors of the Company held on 28th day of
March,2024.

Further, all the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified to
act as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

1. Ms. Kritika, Company Secretary of the Company having Membership No.: 465161 was

appointed as the Compliance Officer of the Company by the Board of Directors in the
Board Meeting held on 01st day ofJune, 2024 with immediate effect.

2. Mr. Prashant Raghuwanshi was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the

Company by the Board of Directors in the Board Meeting held on 01st day of lune, 2024
with immediate effect.

3. Ms. Nimisha lain (DIN: 10651632) and Mr. Pankai lain (DIN: 00257801) were appointed

as Independent Directors of the Company by the Board of Directors in the Board

meeting held on 07th day of lune, 2024 and the same had been approved by the

members of the Company in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 10s day of June,

2024 with immediate effect.

4. Ms. Geeta Goswami, Director of the Company having DIN: 078705?,2 was appointed as

the Chief Executive Officer of the Company by the Board of Directors in the Board

meeting held on 12s day of Iune, 2024 without any variation in the terms and conditions
like remuneration etc.

RETIREMENT BY ROTATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Further, according to the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013 and the

Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. Geeta Goswami, Director, is liable to retire
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered

herself for reappointment.

14. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

All lndependent Directors have confirmed to the Board that they meet the criteria of
independence as specified under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they

qualify to be independent directors pursuant to the Rule 5 of the companies (Appointment

ind Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. The above confirmations were placed before the

Board at its meeting held on April 28, 2023 and duly noted, It is in the opinion of the Board

that the Independent Directors possess relevant expertise, qualifications and experience in

the fields of strategy, finance, people management, risk advisory, financial services,

investment and they hold the hiShest standards of integrity.

15. COMPANYS POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT' PAYMENT OF

REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES:

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration

committee are applicable to the company and same had been constituted by the Board. The

Constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Some changes also occurred after the closure of the financial year till the date of this report.
The details of such changes are as follows:



SL, NO. NAME OF DIRECTOR DESIGNATION
I Ms. Nupur Gupta Director
2 Mr. Gauri Shankar Independent Director
3 Mr. Arvind Jain Independent Director

'Mr. Gauri Shankar anil Mr. Antind lain resigned from the directorship of the company w.e.f.

28.03.2024. Thereafier, the committee reconstituted in the board meeting dated 02.07.2024

after oppointment of independent dtrectors.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure

which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. The Board of Directors has adopted the

Risk management policy which sets out the framework for the management of risks faced by
the Company in the conduct of business to ensure that all business risks are identified,
managed and monitored.

17. SUBSIDIARY, IOINT-VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

The Company doesn't have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Companies during
the year under review.

18. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS.

COURTS AND TRIBUNALS:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or any

tribunals during the year under review which has an impact on the Going Concern status

and Company's operations in future.

19, CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

The company has issued only one kind of shares i.e. equity shares. The summary of
authorized, issued, subscribed and paid'up capital ofthe company is as follows:

Authorized equity share caPital:

The Authorized equity share capital of the company remains unchanged during the year

under review. The authorized share capital as on 31st March,2024 is Rs. 26,00,00,000/-

fRupees Twenty-Six Crore only) divided into 2,60,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees

ten) each.

subscribed, Issued and Paid-up equity share capital:

The subscribed, issued and paid-up equity share capital at the beginning of the year was Rs'

9,4L,AO,IOO/ - (Rupees Nine Crores Forty-One Lakhs Eighty Thousand and Nine

Hundred Only) which comprises of 94,18,090 equity shares of Rs. 10/- [Rupees Ten Only)

each fully paid up. Total number of shares issued and allotted during the year was

11,67,000/- (Eleven Lakhs sixty Seven Thousand Only) equity shares. At the end of the year,

the subscribed, issued and paid-up equity share capital is Rs. 10,58,50,900/- (Rupees Ten

Crores, fifty-Eight Lakhs Fifty Thousand and Nine Hundred Only) comprising of

1,05,85,090 equity share of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten 0nly) each.

During the year under review, the following allotments were made:

Date of
Allotment

No of shares
Allotted

Nominal Value
per share (ln Rs.)

Premium per
share (In Rs.)

Mode of Allotment

12.06.?023 3 6000 10 /- 80 /- Preferential Allotment



05.07.2023 5 810 00 10 /- 80 /- Preferential Allotment
550000 70 /- B0l- Preferential Allotment

20. DEBENTURE STRUCTURE:

During the year under review, the Company had issued one Debenture Series namely "series
K" through private placement and allotted the same. The details are herein belowl

Series Aggregate Amount (in Rs)
K 500 5,00,00,000/-

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws, the Company
has appointed MITCON Credentia Trusteeship Services Limited through its authorized
representative(s) to act as Trustee for the Debenture holders ("Trustees") for "Series K".

The details of outstanding debentures as on the date of this report are as follows:

Series No, ofDebenture Aggregate Amount (in Rs)
I 700 6,39,00,000/-
l 650 6,50,00,000/-

500 5,00,00,000/-

21. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s K R A & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 020266NJ had been
appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company in the 27th Annual general Meeting to
hold office for a period of five (5) years From the conclusion of 27tt Annual General Meeting
tillthe conclusion ofthe 31*Annual General Meeting ofthe Company.

The Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as a

Statutory Auditors of the Company. The Auditor has also furnished a declaration confirming
their independence as well as their arm's length relationship with the Company. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee reviews the independence and objectivity of the auditor
and effectiveness ofthe audit process.

22. EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY OUALIFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE AUDITORS OF
THE COMPANY:

The observation made in Auditors' Report given by M/s. K R A & Co., Chartered Accountants
are self-explanatory and do not contain any reservation, qualification or adverse remarks.
Therefore, needs no further clarification/ explanations as required under Section 134 of the
Companies Act,2013.

AIso, the provisions oF Section 204 of the Companies Act, 201.3 relating to submission of
Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the Company.

23. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has Complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards [as amended from
time to time) on meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1] and Secretarial Standards on
General Meeting (SS-2J for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024 issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of lndia and approved by Central Government under
section 118(10) ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

t0.07 .2023

No. of Debenture

K



24. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year ended March
3L,2024, were on an arm's length basis and were in the ordinary course of business.
Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not attracted.

There are no materially significant related party transactions during the financial year
under review made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, or other designated persons
which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Disclosure
required as per Form AOC-2 is attached as'Annexure I",

However, the disclosure of transactions with related parties for the financial year, as per
Accounting Standard -18 Related Party Disclosures is given in Note to the Balance Sheet as
on March 31, 2024.

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 13a(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2018, the
Company is having website www.ushafinancial.com and annual return of Company has been
published on such website. Link ofthe same is given below:

https: //www.ushafinancial.com/

26. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

Your Company has the policy of giving back to the society and has carried a host of CSR
activities this year in accordance with the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013. ln compliance with Section 135 and amendments in the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility PolicyJ Rules, 2014, there is no need to
constitute corporate social responsibility committee if contribution amount is up to Rs.

50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Lakhs Only), Therefore, the Company is allowed to contribute to
CSR activities by approval of Board of Directors only.

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, company has to contribute 2o/o of the average
net profit of last 3 Financial year in CSR activities, hence the budget for CSR activities is Rs.

17,08,265.84/- [Rupees Seventeen Lakhs Eight Thousand Two Hundred Sixty- Five and
Eight Four Paisa Only) on CSR activities and the same has been spent on the areas
mentioned under Schedule VII ofCompanies Act 2013.

The Brief 0utline of CSR Policy and initiatives undertaken during the year has been annexed
as'Annexure - II'to the Directors'Report

27. PARTICULARS OF LOANS. GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186:

Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, requiring
disclosure in the Financial Statements of the full particulars of the loans made and
guarantees given or securities provided by a Non- Banking Financial Company in the
ordinary course of its business and the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security
is proposed to be utilized by the recipient of the loan or guarantee or security are exempted
from disclosure in the Annual Report. Further, the details of investments made by the
Company are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

28. DETAILS OF ADEOUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The policies and procedures adopted by your Company taken into account the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, keeping in view
the size and nature of the business. The internal financial controls ensure the orderly and

25. WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN



efficient conduct of its business. The controls encompass safeguarding of your Company's
assets, strict adherence to policies, and prevention and detection of frauds and errors

against any unauthorized use or disposition of assets and Misappropriation of funds. These

controls help to keep a check on the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records

and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

29. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN AND OUTGO:

The particulars required under Section 13a(3Xml of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rules 8 of the (Accounts) Rules 2014 in respect of conservation of energy and technology

absorption are provided hereunder:-

a. Conservationofenergy-

(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;-NA

[ii] the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy;-NA
(iiil the capital investment on energy conservation equipments;'NA

b. Technoloryabsorption-

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption;'NA

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development

or import substitutiou-NA

(iii) in case of imported technolory (imported during the last three years reckoned from

the beginning ofthe financialyear)
(a) the details oftechnolory imported;-NA
(b) the year of import;NA
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;-NA

ial if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the

reasons thereof; -NA

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development-NA

c. Foreigrt exchange earnings and Outgo'

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year is NIL and the

Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms ofadual outflows is NIL'

30. COMPLIANCE WITH RBI GUIDELINES:

The company being an NBFC has complied with all applicable regulations of the Reserve

Bank of lndia for Non-deposit taking NBFC, As per the Reserve Bank of lndia (Non-Banking

Finance Companies) Direitions, 1998, the Directors hereby report that the Company did not

u.."pt rny publi. deposits during the year and did not have any public deposits outstanding

at the end ofthe year.

31. CODE OF CONDUCT. TRANSPARENCY AND CLIENT PROTECTION

The company has fully implemented the Reserve Bank of lndia's Fair Practice code and also

adopted the unified Code ofConduct ofUsha Financial Services Limited'

32. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The provisions of Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Manigerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable, as there are no such employee who



revlew.

33. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS:

During the period under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported to the Board or
Central Government any instances of material fraud in the Company by its officers or
employees under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 as no fraud was committed by

the company at any time.

34. SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY FOR WOMEN UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF

WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION. PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL') ACT, 2013:

The Company is in compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and RedressalJ Act,2013 and has adopted a policy on Sexual

Harassment to prohibit, prevent or deter any acts of sexual harassment at workplace and to
provide the procedure for the redressal of complaints pertaining to sexual harassment,

thereby providing a safe and healthy work environment.

CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEE - SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The sexual harassment ofwomen at workplace (prevention, prohibition and Redressal) Act,

2013 requires an employer to set up an 'internal complaints committee' ("lCC") at each

office or branch, of an organization, to hear and redress grievances pertaining to sexual

harassment. The company has constituted the same and complied with the provisions

relating to Constitution of internal complaints committee' under Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and RedressalJ Act, 2013

Further, during the year under review, no case was filed under the provisions of Sexual

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013'

35. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

The nature of company's business/ activities is such that maintenance of cost records under

Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

36, PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE. 2016:

No application or proceeding was initiated in respect of the company in terms of I nsoivency

and Bankruptcy Code 2016.

37' DETAILS oF DITFERENCE BETWEEN AMoUI\T oF THE VALUATIoN DoNE AT THE TIME

Or ONr ttN'le SgTTLT[,tnNt AI,lp rHe VaLUATION OONE WHILE T eXtNC LOAN pnOM

THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE RFASONS THEREOF,

During the year under review, there were nO transactions or events with respect to the 0ne-

time settlement with any bank or financial institution, hence no disclosure or reporting is

required.

38. DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with clause (c) of Sub-section (3) of section 134 of the companies Act, 2013

the Directors would like to inform the Members that the Audited Accounts for the financial

year ended March 31, 2024, are in full conformity with the requirement of the companies

ict, 2013. The Financial Accounts are audited by the Statutory Auditors, M/s K R A & Co '
chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 020266N). The Board of Directors of the

company further confirmed the members that:

were drawing / in receipt of remuneradon of prescribed amount during the period under



a. in the preparation ofthe annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit ofthe company for that period;

c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets ofthe company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
e. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of

all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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ANNEXURE I

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transaction under third proviso
thereto,

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis,

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year ended 31*
March, 2024, which were not at arm's length basis.

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of
business at arm's length basis, the details of which are given in the notes to financial Statements.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

USHA ERVICES LIMITED

0

Raiesh G

Managing Director
DIN:01941985
Address: B-191, Yoina Vihar,
Delhi 110092
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Director and CEO
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2J of

The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Goswami



ANNEXURE II

1. A brief outline of Companv's CSR policv. including overview of proiect or program to be
undertaken:

The weblink for CSR Policy disclosed on the website ofthe Company: www.ushafinancial.corn

2. Average Net profit of the companv for last three Financial Yeari

The Company has achieved a net profit of Rs, 14,39,92,710.03/- (Rupees Fourteen Crores

Thirty-Nine Lakhs Ninety Two Thousand Seven Hundred Ten and Three Paisa onlyl during the
Financial Year 2022-2023, and the average net profit of the last 3 Financial years is Rs.

8,54,13,292.01/- (Rupees Eight Crores Fifty-Four Lakhs Thirteen Thousand Two Hundred
Ninety-Two and One Paisa OnlyJ. As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, company has to
contribute 2o/o of the average net profit of last 3 Financial year in CSR activities, hence the
budget for CSR activities is Rs. 17,08,265.84/- (Rupees Seventeen Lakhs Eight Thousand Two
Hundred Sixty- Five and Eight Four Paisa Only) on CSR activities.

3. Details of CSR spent for the Financial Year:

[a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs,17 ,08,266/-
[bJ Amount unspent: NIL
(cJ Manner in which the amount spent for the financial year is detailed below:

S.No. CSR
proiect/Fund

Sector
in
which
the
proiect
or
activity
covered

Proiect or
programs
l.Local area or
other
2. Specify the
state and
district where
proiects/activity
undertaken

Amount
outlay
[budget)
proiect or
programs
(in Rs,)

Amount
spent on
the
proiects or
programs
(in Rs.)

Mode
Amount
Spend

of

7 Promotion of
Education

Schedule
VII:
Category
(ii)

The amount has
been spent by
Mata
Krishnawanti
Memorial
Educational
Society (REGDJ in
Delhi.

L7,08,266/- L7,08,266/-

Corporate Social Responsibility is an integral part of the Company's ethics and policy and it has
been pursuing this on a sustained basis. Usha Financial Services Limited is committed to
conduct business in a socially, economically and environmentally responsible and sustainable
manner, which enables the creation and distribution of wealth for the betterment of societies
through the implementation and integration of ethical systems and sustainable management
practices. In compliance with Section 135 and amendments in the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, there is no need to
constitute corporate social responsibility committee if contribution amount is up to 50 Lakh.
Therefore, the Company is allowed to contribute to CSR activities by approval of Board of
Directors only. Your Company has the policy of giving back to the society and has carried a host
of CSR activities this year in accordance with the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies
AcL 2013.

Through
Implementing
Agency



4. In case the comoanv has failed to spend the two oercent. of the average net Drofit of the
last three financial vears or anv nart thereof. the Company shall orovide the reasons for
not spending the amount in its Board Report:

N.A

5. A responsibilitv statement of the CSR committee/Board of Directors that the

Poliqv ofthe Company;

Implementation of CSR activities is in compliance with Companies Act, 2073 to meet the CSR

obiectives and in compliance with the CSR policy ofthe Company.

FORAND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

USHA FINAN RVICES LIMITED

l.?

Raiesh G Goswami
Managing D Director and CEO

DIN:07810522
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vasundhra, Ghaziabad- 201012, UP

DArE:30. OS.LOLLI DArE: 30 .08.20ZLl
PLACE: DELHI PLACE: DELHI
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KRA & CO"
a o1i - r7o828s5

Fax: 011 - 47082855

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
we have audited the financial statements of usHA FINANCIAL SERYICES LIMITED ("the

Company'), which comprise the balance sheet as at Match 31, 2024, the statement of profit and loss' and

statement ofcash flows for the year then ended and notes to the fi,rancial statements, including a summary

of sigdficant accounting policies and other explanatory information

In out opinion and to the best of our infomration and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaiJ6aancial statements give the ioformation required by the Compaoies Acq 2013 i,. the manner so

tequired and give a mre and fair vievr in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in

India, of the state of affars of the company as at March 31, 2024, and its Pto6t, and its cash flows for the

year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
we conducted our audit ir accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specirred under section 143(10)

of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities undet tlose Standards are further described in the

.,Auditor's ResponsibiLities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" secdon of out report' We e

hdependent oithe Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India together with the ethical requfements that are felevant to oul audit of the financiai

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 aod the Rules thereunder, and we have fulElled

our other ethical resptnsibilities in accor&nce vrith these requirements and the Code of Ethics' We believe

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for out opinion.

Other Information
The Company,s Board of Dlectors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises-the information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and

oor arrdito.,, rcport thereon. The annual report is exPected to be made available to us after the date of this

auditor's report.

ouropiniononthefinancialstatementsdoesnotcovertheotherinformationandwervillnotexpJessany
form of assutance or conclusion thereon.

In connection v,ith our aud.it of the Frnanci.al statements, out responsibility is to rcad the other inforrnation

identiEed above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other inforrnation is

materially inconsistent with the Frnancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, ot otherwise

appeats to be materially misstated.

vh.r, *. will read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a matedal misstatement therein, we ale

required to communicate the matter to those charged with govemance'

H -11208, Garg Tower, Netaii Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi -1 10034

Visit us at: www.kra.co.in



Responaibitities of Management and Those Charged with Governance fot the Fiaancial
Statements
The Company's Boatd of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe Companies

Acq 2013 ("the AcC) with respect to the prepalation of these financial statements that give a ttue and fair

view of the fiaancial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accotdance urith

the accounting principles genenlly accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under

section 133 of the Acl This responsibility also ircludes maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordaoce vrith the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company aod for preventing

and detecting frauds and otler irregularities; selecdon and application of apptopriate accounting poLicies;

making judgments and estimates that ate reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate intemal firtancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the

accuncy and completeness of the accountiag tecor&, televant to the prepafation and presentation of the

frrancial statements tlut give a true and fair view and are free ftom material misstaternent, whether due to

fraud or eror.

In prepadng the Froancial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's

ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using

the going concem basis ofaccounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company

or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Boatd of Directors are also responsible fot ovetseeing the Company's filancial reporting process

Auditods Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statemelrts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errot, and to issue an auditofs report that includes

out opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted

in accordance v,ith SAs will always detect a material misstatement vhen it exists, Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably

be expected to influence the economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis of these Enancial statements,

As pat of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identifu and assess the tisks of matetial misstatement of the financid statements, whether due to

ftaud or eror, design and perform audit procedutes responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufEcient and appropdate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting ftom fraud is higher thao for one tesulting from errot,

as ftaud may involve collusion, fogery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovetride

of intemal control.

Obtain an underctanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are apptoptiate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(f of the Companies

Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing out opinion on whether the company has

adequate intemal financid controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the teasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists telated to events

or conditions that may cast sigrificant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going

concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requited to dtaw attention in oul
auditols repot to the related disclosutes in the financial statements or, if such disclosutes ate

inadequate, to modi$ our opinion. Out conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

to the date of our auditoCs repott. Howevet, futute events ot conditions may cause the Company

to cease to condnue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall ptesentation, structute and content of the Enancial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial satements rePr€seflt the underlying bansactions and events

in a manner that ach.ieves fair presentation.

rWe communicate with those charged with govemance regarding among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit 6ndings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal

control that we identifr during our audit.

We also provide those charged u,ith govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements tegarding independence, and to commuriicate vith them all telationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where aPPlicable, related

safeguatds.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order'), issued by the Central

Govemment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Acg 2013, we

give in the "Annexute A" a statement on the matters specified in paragtaphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the infotmation and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief wete necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, propet books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appeats ftom our examination ofthose books

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro6t and I-oss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt

with by this Report are in agteement with the books of accouflt

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Enancial satements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified undet Section 133 of the Acg read szith Rule 7 of the Compaoies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written rqrresentations received ftom the directors as on lvfarch 31,

2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

March 31 , 2024 from behg appointed as a director in terms of Section 1 64(2) of the Act.



f. With respect to the adequacy of the intemal Enancial contols over Enancial tepoting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness ofsuch conEols, tefet to out sepamte Report

in "Annexure B".
g. With rcspect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Rq>ort undet Sectioa 197(16)

of the Act:
In our opinion, the managerial remunetation for the year ended March 31,2024 has been

paid by t}le Company to its dilectors in accordance with the provisions of section 1 97 read

vith Schedule V to the Act;
h. With respect to the other mafters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance

vith Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditots) Rules, 2014, in out opiaion and to

the best of out infornation and accotding to the explanations given to us:

i. The pending litigations has been disclosed by the Company io Note 35 of the

financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts

for which thete were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay h traosfering amounts, required to be transferred to

the Investor Educatioa and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has reptesented that, to the best of its knowledge and belie(

no firtrds (which are material either individually or in the agregate) have been

advanced or loaned ot invested (either from borrowed firnds ot share premium

or any other soutces or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other petson

or entity, induding foreign entity ("Intetmediaries'), with the undentanding

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intetrnediary shall, whether,

directly or indirecdy leod or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

mannet whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaties')

or provide any guarantee, sec'ruity ot the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has repfesented, that, to the best ofits knowledge and belie(

no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggegate) have been

received by the Company ftom any Pe6on o! entity, including forergn enuty

("Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in wnung or

otherwise, that the Company shalt whether, direcdy or inditectly, lend or invest

in other persons or endties identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf

of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guatantee, security

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit ptocedures that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to oul nodce tlat has caused

us to believe that the reprcsentations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) ofRule 11(e), as

provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

Based on our examinadon, which included test checks, the Company has used

accounting softrvare for maintaining its books of account for the Frnancial year

ended March 31, 2024, which has a featute ofrecording audit trail (edit log) faci.lity

and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
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recorded in the softwate. Furthet, during the course of our audit we did oot come

across any instance of the audit tail feature behg tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable

from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and

Auditots) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as Per the statutory

rcquirements for record letention is not applicable for the financial yeat ended

March 31 , 2024.



ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTOF EYEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Of USHA FINANCIAL SERYICES LIMITED
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Repoft on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements" ofour teport of even date)

(, (") (A) The Company has maiotained proper records showing firll particulars, induding

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing firll particulars of inangible

assets.

In accotdance with the phased progrdnme for vedfication of Property, Plant and

Equipment, certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment wete physically veriEed by

the managemefit during the year and no matedal discrepancies were nodced on such

veri 6cation.

According to the infoffiation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the tide deeds of all the immovable propenies

(other than propetties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly

executed ir favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements ate held in the name

of the company

According to the inforrnation aod explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued any Property,

Plant and Equipment during the yeat. Consequendy, clause (i)(d) of ttre Ordet is not

applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of out

examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are

pending against the company for holding any benami ProPerty undet the Benami

t."rr.rition. prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereundet, if so'

Consequently, clause (i)(e) ofthe Order is not appLicable to the Company'

The Company is an Non-Banking Financial Company and does not hold any inventoty'

Consequently, clause (i!(a) of the Orda is not applicable to the Company.

According to the infomration and explanations given to us aod on the basis of out

examinad.on of the recotds of the Company, the company has not been sanctiored qith

any working capital limits in ercess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, ftom banhs or

financial instinrtions on the basis of security of curent assets. Consequendy' clause (ii)@)

of the Order is not apPlicable to the Company.

a)

G)

(,r)

G)

(ii) (")

(*)

(")

Accotding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examination of
tle records of the Company, the company has granted secured/unsecuted loans and a&ances in

the nature ofloan to various companies, firms, LLP and other parties. Howevet, as the Company

is a Non-Banking Financial Company whose prirnary business is granting loans etc. The provision

of clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company'



(r, According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour eramiaation of
rhe records of the Company, the Company has complied vith the ptovisions of Sections 1 85 and

186of the Companies Act,2Ol3 in respect of gfant of loans, making investments and ptoviding

guarantees and secutities, as applicable.

(") According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofout examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not accePted any deposit during the year'

Consequendy, clause (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

("r) According to the information and explanations givefl to us and on the basis ofout examination of
tle records of the Company, the Company is not required to mainain cost records under secdon

148(1) of the Companiei Ac! 2013. Consequendy, clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

("r, According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in resPect of statutory dues:

(") The Company has genetally been rcgular h depositing undisputed statutory dues including

Goods and Sen'ices Tax, Ptovident Fund, Employees Sate Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-

tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, ExcGe Duty, value added tax, cess and any other statutory

dues, dudng the year, with the appropriate authotities and there are no material statutory

dues in atears as at March 37, 2024 fot a peAod of more than six months from the date

they became Payable.

G) The Dues of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,

Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, value added tax, cess and

any other satutory dues which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2024, on account

of disputes with the related authotities is as follows:

Statute Nature
Dues

of Forum where

pending
Period Amount

Income Tax

Act, 1961

Demand

Order under

section 154

Income Tax

CPC

AY 2027-22 58,88,,+20

(flr) According to the infotmation and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examination of

the records of the Company, there are no transactions which ate not recotded in the books of

account and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments

undet the Income Tax Act, 1961

(*) (") According to the information and erplanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the

repayment of dues to Enancial institutions ot banks.

(b) Accotding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ow

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared wilfirl

defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lendet.



(") (")

G)

(d)

G)

(0

o)

@)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of out
examinatioo of the tecords of the Company, the term loan availed dudng the period have

been applied for the purposes fot which it is availed.

According to the information and explanatioos giveD to us and on t}le basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the funds raised on short term basis have not
been udlized for lorg term PWPoses. Consequendn clause (ix)(d) of the Otdet is not
applicable to the Company.

Ttre Company does not have any Subsidiary. Consequendy, clause (ix)(e) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any Subsidiary. Consequendy, clause (Lr)(! of the Otder is
not applicable to the Company.

Accordhg to the information and explanations givefl to us aad on the basis of out

examinadon of the records of the Company, the Company has not raised money by the

way of Initial Publj.c Offer (IPO). Consequendy, clause (x)(a) of the Otdet is not

applicable to the Company.

Accotding to the infotmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of out
eramination of the records of the Company, the Company has made private Placement of
shares during the year. The Company has comPlied vith the requirements of section 42

and section 62 of the Companies Act,2013 and the funds raised have been used fot the

putposes for which the funds wete nised. The Company has not issued any convertible

debenture during the yeat.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to

us, no material ftaud by the ComPany or on the Company has been noticed or teported

during the year.

According to the infotmation and explanations given to us, no report undet sub-section

(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 6led by the auditor in Form ADT-4 as

ptescribed uader rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditots) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Govemment.

(*) (")

G) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whisde blower complaints

has been received during the yeat. Consequently, dause (r!(c) of the Otder is not
apPlicable to the ComPanY.

(*) According to the information and explanations givea to us, the company is not a Nidhi company.

Consequendy, clause (xif of the Order is oot apPlicable to the Company.

(rr, In out opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with

the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of companies Act, 2013, and

corresponding deails have been disclosed in the financial statements, as tequired by the applicable

Accounting Stzndatds.

&

{:



("i") G)

(.-i) (")

(.)

(*) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not entered into any non-cash transactions vrith directors ot Persons connected with him.

In out opinion and accotding to the informatioo and explanations given to us, the

Company has an intenal audit systeor conrmensurate with the size aod nature of its
business

The report of the Internal Auditor for the year were considercd by us for satutory audit

PurPoses.

The Company is required to be registered undet section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and has obtained the requisite registration as a non-banking financial

institution undet section 45-tA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1 934.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Baoking Financial Activiues without a valid

certiEcate of teg'istration ftom the Reserve Banl of India as per Resewe Bank of India

Act, 1934.

(b)

G) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company is not a Core Investrnent Company (CIC) as defined ia the regulations made by

the Reserve Bank of India. Consequently, clause (xvi)(c) of the Otder is not aPPlicable to

the Company.

(d) There are no other Companies in the Group. Consequendy, clause (xvi)(d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company

(*uii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately

preceding financial yeat.

(xviii) There is no resignation of the Statutory Auditor duting the year. Consequendy, clause (xvin) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

(]i*) Accotding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofthe financial ratios,

ageing and expected dates ofrealisation of Enancial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other

information accompanying the financial satements, our knowledge of the Boatd of Directots and

management plans and based on our examhation of the evidence supporting the assumptions,

nothing has come to orJr attention, which causes us to believe that any matefial uncertainty exists

as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing

at the &te of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a pedod of one year &om the balance

shee t date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.

We further sate that our reporting is based on the facts up to the &te of the audit report and we

neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one

year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by tlre Company as and whel they fall due.

Gq In out opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

firlly spent the amount required to be speod under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.



For KRA & Co.
Chaltered Accoutrtants
(Firm Registation No.020266N)

Rajat
Partner
Membershio No.: 503150
uDrN: a(Y5-o-3t$ 6kAAf +o'1 t
Place: Delhi
Date: 05. o+- Ja{Y



ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

(Referted to in Paragraph 2 point (f) under the heading of '.Repod on other Ifgat and Regulatory

Requirements" ofour report ofeven date)

Report on the Internal Financial conuols over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of Sub-

section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'')

Managemends Responsibility for Internal Financial Conrols

The Company's management is tesponsible fot establishing and maintaining iltemal Frnancial controls

based on the intemal contol over financial reporting criteda established by the Company, considering the

essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidaoce Note on Audit of Intemal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reponing issued by the Institute of Charteted Accounants of India. These

tesponsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial con}ols

that were operating effectively for ensudng the ordedy and ef6cient conduct of its business, including

adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the ptevention and detection of ftauds and

erors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recotds, and the timely preparation of reliable

Enancial information, as required undet the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
Out responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial conttols over financial

reporting based on our audil We conducted our audit in accor&nce with the Guidance Note on Audit of

Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Repoting (the "Guidance Note') issued by Instin:te of

Charered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of ifltemal financial conttols, Those Standards

and the Guidaace Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and Plan and perfotm the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whethet adequate intemal financial contols over financial reporting

was established afld maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all matetial respects.

Our audit involves petforming ptocedues to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effecdveness. Our audit of intemal

Enancial conuols over financial reporting included obtainhg an undentanding of intemal financial conttols

over financial reporting, assessing the dsk that a material weakness erists, and testing and evaluating the

design and opetating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's iudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to ftaud ot errot.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufEcient and appropriate to provide a basis fot our

audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial contols system ovet Enancial reporting.

Meaning of Intetnal Financial Controls ovet Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial contol over Fmancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial rcponing and the preparation of Enancial statements for

Sre have audited the intemal financial contfols ove! Enancial teporting of USHA FINANCIAL

SERYICES IIMITED (.the Company") as at March 37,2024, in conjunction with our audit of the

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.



extemal purposes in accor&nce with generally accePted accounting principles. A compaay's intemal

financial conuol over financial reporting includes those policies and ptocedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assumnce tlat tansactions are recorded

as necessary to permit prepamtion offinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounthg

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company ate being made only in accordance with

authodsations of management and directors of the companp and (3) provide reasonable assurance

regarding preventiofl or timely detection of unauthotised acquisition, use, ot disposition of the company's

assets that could have a material effect on the Enancial statemeflts.

Inherelt Limitations of Intemal Financial Controls Ovet Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over Enancial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion ot impropet management overide of controls, material misstatemeflts due to effot

or fraud may occur altd not be detected. Also, proiections ofany evaluation of the intemaL Enan<jal contols

over financial reporting to futute periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial con&ol over

financiai reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or ptocedures may deteriorate

Opinion
In our opioion, to the best ofout information and accordhg to the explanation given to us, the Company

has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over financial teporting and such

intemal financial controls ovet financial reporting wete operating effectively as at Match 37, 2024, based

oo the intemal contfol ovet financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reponing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For KRA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regisration No.020266N)

Raiat Goyal
Paltner
Membershin No.: 503150

uorN: f Y(o 3tft 6k4t x f To'.lL
Place: Delhi
Date: C.t, o?. Jo I Y



USHA FINANCIAL SERI'ICDS LIMITED
CIN : U74E99DLl995PLC06E6O4

330, Mezz.nine Floor, Functiotral IBdurtrial Estate, patprrganj, Delhi-110092
B.lance Sheet as on Jlst M&rch 2024

I'articulals Note As at Msrch 31, 2024 As et Mlrch 31, 2023

4

5

6

7

I
9

6

1

1,058.5 t

9,544.12
941.E I

733 t.61
10,602.63

7,368. t5
r,061.56

19.20

I t042.32

t687.34
t3.27

8,448.9t 12142.93

r0,?60.07

2.39
45.09

3,402.tE

324.34

13709.08

2.7a

66.31

2229.03

178-50

14,534.21 16185.?0

33,585.81 37202.05

l0
ll
tz
l3

14

l5
l6

17

t5
I8

720.2t
o.45

146.26

0.26

Et.94
5,9t4.21

64.54

47.E1

t.l8

52.66

10207.14

E64.79

6,934.87 It73.64

174.83

24,7tst.55

1,094.56

7.26

25561.80
459.35

26,650.94 26028.41

33.S85_'il 312u2.05

nt in

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Fund
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

Non Current Liabilities
lnflg-Term Borrowings
other LI)ng Tcrm Liabiliries
Long Tcrm Provisions

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITES
II. ASSETS

No&Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipmenl and Inlangible Assets
- Propeny, Plant and Equipmcnt
- lotaogiblc assets

- Capital work-in-pro$ess
- Intangible assets under deyelopment

Non Curcnt Invcstment

D€fenrd Tar Assers (Ner)

Long Tern Loaos & Advances
Other Non-Cunent Assets .

current arsets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short Term lrans & Advances
Other Cuncnt Asscts

.I'OTAL 
ASSETS

Significanl Accounling Policies (Refer llole I and 2)
The accompanying notes I to 38 form an jn tegral pan ofthe ilnancial statemeols
As per olr rcpot ofcvcn date

For KRA & Co.
Chartered Accountants

For rnd on belalf of the Board of Dirertors
USHA FINAr\.CIAI, SE l\II'TEI)

Firm Regd. No. e+v a

Director

Membership No

DIN,(]I 935

CA "ffd;*- 50315

uow, & q (o st(o Bf A t x Fl" q I

DE'.HI

*

rz
t!

Place: New Delhi
oot"a, 05.o ?,XoJ y

Conrpany Secretary

M.No : 65161

Curretrt Lhbilities
Short-Tcrm Borrowings
Trnde Payables

- Due to Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises
- Due to Other thaD Micrc & Small Enterprises

Other Current Liabilities
Sho(-Term Provisions

8213.42

Rajat

\,,&
Rajcsh Gupta
MlnagingDirdor

cFo
M.No. :460716



USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN : U74899DL1995pLC068604

330, Mezzanine Floor, Functional Industrial Estate, patparganj, Delhi-l10092
Statemetrt of Prolit atrd Loss for the year Ended 3lst March 2024

(Amouot ir Lakhs

Particulars Notc
Year ended

March 31. 2024
Year ended

March 3l ,2023INCOME
Revenue From Operations
Other locome
Total Income

EXPENSES
Employee Benefi ts ExpeNe
Finance costs
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Provision & Write-off
Other Expenses

Total Expe[ses

Prolit before tax
Tax expense:

-Culrent Tax
-Previous Year Tax
-Deferred Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

t9
20

2t
22
23

24

25

4,508.17
55.56

6396.05 4.563.73

310.24
297'1.'t4

26.69
427.O0

949.98

2s0.09
2,t50.47

22.89
(2o.43)
7'72.21

4691.65 3,175.23

1704.40 1.388.50

443.20

18.58
(36.2e)

352.98
(0.54)

't.63

1218.91 r,028.43

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
Basic (Face value ofRs.l0 each)
Diluted (Face value ofRs.l0 each)

26

26
t2.45
t2.45

12.24

t2.24

Significant Accounting Policies (Refer note I and 2)
The accompanyin g notes I to 38 furm an integral part of the financial stateme[ts.

As per our report ofeven date

l-or KRA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regd. No.0202

For and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors
USHA FINANC c

c s

Rajesh Gupta
Managing Director DEI,HI

DIN-o194198

CA Prashan Raghuryanshi Kritika
cFo
M.No.:460716

ecb \'ory
Rajat

D

810522

uArYq-,

Partner

Membership No. : - 503150
uDrN; d Y<i 3tJ-d BF4Lx {ln't(
Place: New Delhi
Dated: o f' o?. 2.ot y

020

lia

6322.20
73.85

cz.,tny

Company Secretary
M.No : 65161



(Amount in lrkhs)

B

ror the rrar end(d N1rrch 3t,202.r 3l Mrrch,rorih!ye.re[dcd

- 

2021

1,70t.40

(56.87)

26.69

(14.90)

138 24

2EE.76

l3t8.5l

(42.04)

22.90

81.E6

(30.4.1)

l0 0l
3.5r

2,0E6.12 1,43431

780.25

4,O0,{-.t7

(60r.53)

800.25

lzt.6t)
6.20

t,l?3.3?
(625.18

(r4,104.3s)

(6,31t.75)

173.E7

(7e1.05)

20.34

( l. t4)
| 346.96

979.62

?,601.64 (r7,405.19)
(454 97) (310.76)

7,146.67 (17,715.95)

(850.r3)

23_69

20.23

114.09

(3. r7)
47 -t9

(800,2r) l?E.ll

1,050.10

(129.00)

l2,4t2 tE)
(3,782.01)

2,423.25

I,162.00

5,079.09

8,5E7.08
(5,572.89) t7 45t.42

167.57 (85.42)

726 91.66

rovisjon for Standard ud Non performins assers

Operriing Profit belor€ WorkinS C.pirst CharSes

lncrease) in Shon term Loa, & Advanc6

D.cred,r(lncrensc) n olhcrNon curcnr As\.rs

D.creose) in Provisions

Decrease) in Other CurI€nt Uabitiries

Income ln)(cs Efitoded/ (!aid)

Net crrh florr from op€rltion3 (A)

Purchlsc of Fix.d Ais€ts
I cresl Inclrn on Fsed Dcpixirs

calh fton fror, (used itr) irvcstlng rcth{tl6 ( B)

m..dd(R.paymcn0 frcm Issuancc of ttbeotu er(Ner)
Prececdt(Rcpayment) of r-ong rerm Eorowing(NeO
Preceeds/(Rcpaymen0 of Shon rcm BoftIJwi!gs(Ncr)
Ner cr$ no* rrorn/ (used ln) fia.rcing acrivities ( C)

Ner inc.la.d(decrE re) in cash a.d cash equiv.lents (A+B+C)
Cash ![d crsh cquivalenrs d fic bcganniflg oftte p€riod ylar

l'

in O$erNon Cumnr Liabilities

\€t Profit Bcfore Trr

/(Prcfi0 on SalcofShares

g.o.r.ted rrom op.r.tio[!

from Salc ot Fixed Assels

from Issue olEquity Sharsr

Potfolio l@ns wriner off
Provirion for crltuity & Bonur

in lrng lerm lran & Advanc6
in Othtr Cur..nt Ass$

771.E3 7.26

C'k
DEI.HIMemb.Bhip No. :- 503150

UD^. ol I 96 \ tA B EAta

o'l.l, o {. o +,zot ?

lb

6
o2q

for ard on b*hsltofihe Bosrd ofDiredorr
USTTA IINANCI I'If,D

Manasinr D

DINJI

M.No. :460716

Firm Rc8d. N

Oarv{-,

M.No:65161

€*,1'

CFO

For I(RA & Co.

Cbarter€d Accounta s

Rrjrl GoFl
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USIIA TINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CrN : U?4E99DL1995pLC068604

330, Mezanin€ Floor, Function.l Industrial Estrte, prtpsrgstrj, Delhi_110092
Crsh Flow Statemeor for the r-ear Ended 3Irt Mrrch 2O2a

on s!l! ol Fircd Asscrs
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S ERv

USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Backoround

Usha Financiat Services Limited (ClN: U74899DL 1995PLC068604) (lhe Company') was incorporaled on'16O5,/1995.

The Company has received the Certificate of Registration dated 04/0'112003 from the Reserve Bank of lndia ('RBl') to

carry on the business of Non Banking Financial lnstitution without accepting deposits ('NBFC-NO").

The Company is engaged in extending credit to lndividuals and small enterprises typically self-employed business. The

Company follows the cash flow based credit assessment with suitable adaptations for each type of business, where the

loans are given for business expansion, working capital or for purchase of assels.

I
Siqniflcant acc ntinq oolicies

2.1 Basis Dreoaration of financia lstatements

The financial statements have been prepared and presented under historical cost convention and accrual basis of

accounting, unless otherwise stated, and in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in lndia

(lndian GAAP) and conform to the statutory requirements, circulars, regulations and guidelines issued by Reserve

Bank of lndia (RBl) from time to time to the extent they have an impact on the llnancial statements and cunent

practices prevailing in lndia. The llnancial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspecls wilh

the Accounting Standards ('AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the

companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent applic€ble. The company follows the prudential norms for

income recognition, asset classiflcation and provisioning as prescribed by the RBI for Non-deposit taking Non-

Banking Finance Companies (NBFC-ND).

2.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of Iinancial statements in conformity with the GAAP requires management to make estimates and

assumplions that affect the reported amounis of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, reported

balance of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statemenls.

Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively

in current and future periods.

2.3 Revenuerecoqnition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that il is probable that the economic benefits will flo,v to the Company and

the revenue can be reliably measured.

l. lnterest income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on an accrual basis. ln case of Non Performing Assets (NPA)

inte.est income is recognised upon realisation as per the RBI Guidelines. lnterest accrued and not realised before the

classification ofthe asset as an NPA is reversed in the month in which the loan is classified as NPA.

ii. Upfront /processing fees are recovered and recognised at the time of disbursement of loan / receipt.

iii. lnterest income on other deposits are recognised on a time proportion basis. tncome from dividend is recognized

in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive is established'

iv. prolit / Loss on disposal of an investment is recognised at the time of such sale / redemption and is mmputed

based on weighted average cost

g-Hl

*

f.
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office at 330. Mezzanine Floor. Functional lndustrial Estate, Patparqani. Delhi- '110092

Notes forminq part of the financial statements Year Ended 31st March. 2024

Note-1



DEI.HI

2'4 Tansible lixed assets. rntstreibre fixed rssets and intaneibre nxed {ssets under deveropp€nt
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, ifany. The cosr offixcd ass€ts includes
non-refundable taxes, duties' fieight and oder iacidental expeues incuned directty relaH to 6e acquisitioa and
installatio! ofthe asset. subscquent expenditure on fixed assets aftcr th€ir pulchase / complgtion is capitalized, only ifsuch
expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its pr€viously assessed standard ofperformancc.

The cosl ofintangible fixed assets not ready tbr the intended use at each balance sheet datc is disclosed as idtaigible fixcd
assets under developrnenl.

2.5IED.irment
Th€ comPany determines periodically whether there is any indication of impairment ofthc carrying amount of its assets.
The recovemble amount (higher ofnet selling price and value in use) is detemined for an iodividJasset, uoless the asset
does not genemte cash inflow that arc largely independont ofthose from other assets or group of asser. Tlrc rccovcrable
amounts of such asset are estimated, if any indication cxists and impairment loss is rccognized whercvcr thc caFyiag
amount of tho asset exceeds its recoverable amount. where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amourt or alrindividual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount ofthe cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

2.6 Depreciation ard Amortization:
Depreciation on langibl€ fixed asscls is providcd on pro-rata basis (i.e. from the date oo which lhc asset is ready to uso) on w tten
down value mclhod. Depreciation on fixed assets is provided over the useful lives of the asset, as cstimated by the managcment
based on internal technical assessment. Ilthe mana8ement's estilnate ofthe useful life ofa fixed asset at the tirne ofacquisition of
the asset or of thc remainiDg useful life ou a subsequent review is shoner than thrt eovisage4 depreciation is provided at a higher
rale based on tle management's estimate of the useful Iife / remaining useful life. Pursuant to this policy, lhe ostimated useful life
ofassets are as follows:

ComputcG and accessories

Ofiice Equipmenr
5 Yearc

Fumiture ard Fixtures l0 Years

Intangible assets are amonized over their estimated useful life oo wrinen dow,l value method as follows:

lntangible Assets - Compulcr Software Lic.nse period or 3 years,

wfiichevcr is lower

2.7 Borrowins costs

Borowi[g costs ioclude interest and ancillary costs thal lhe Company incurs ilt coonection with the bonowiogs. Costs tl
connection with the borrowing oI lirnds to thc cxtent not directly related lo the acquisilion of qualifrhg asser L charged
to the Statement ofProtit and Loss at th€ time olavailment ofthe loan.

2.lt orisinalio

Brokemge, commission and other costs paid at the time ofacquisirion or roans arc charged to thc statement of
Loss.

Profit and

t-
d\,az4s g{ti-l
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2.9 Earnincs oer sharr

2.l0In taxes

2.12 Classificatiol and provisionins on receiyables from financins actiyities

SE

Basic eamings per share is cornputed and disclosed usin8 the weighted avemge lumber of coE1a6n shar€s oulstatrditrg
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the wcighted average numbcr ofcommon ani
dilutive common e4uivarent shares outstanding during the year, except *,rren the resulrs wourd be antidirutive.

' Income_tax expense comPrises ourrent tax (i.e. amouDt oftax for the period detcrmined iD accordance with lhe incohe-tax lav)
and deferred lax charge or credit (rellectiog the tax effects oi timint differences botwee! accounting i*ome 

"oo 
t"raure io"o.e

for thc period) lncome_tax expense is rocognized in stal€ment of profit and loss except thar tax e-xp€ns€ relatitrg to hems
recognizcd directly in reserves is also recognized in those reserves.

' curr€nt tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered iiom) the taxation authorities, using the applicable
lax rates atrd lax laws. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of timhg d.ifferences between raxable income-aod accouatiag
incomc i,e. difttrcnces that originate in one period and are capable of reveasal in one or more subsequent pcriods. The
deferred tax charge or credit and the correspondin8 deferred tax liabilitios or assets are recogoized lsing the tax rates ard
tax laws that have been enacted or substaotively enacled by the balaoce sheet date. Deferred tax ass€b ; recogtrized orly
to the extent there is reasonable ce(ainty that the assets cao be realized io fufure; however, where $erc is uoabso6ed
deprcciation oa carried forward loss undcr taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is a vinual
certainty supported by coovincing evidence that suflicient future taxable incorne will be available against which such
defened tax assels can be realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and *Titten down or
wrinen-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually cerrain (as the case may be) to be realized.

2.1I Provisions. continpent liabililies and rontinqcnt assels

A provision is recognized when there is presed obligation as a rcsult of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can b€ made. provisions are
determined based on best estimates requircd to settle the obligatio[ at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed al each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflcct the crurent nlanagement estiqEtes. Irss continge[cies arising fiom clairns,
litigation, assessment' fines. penalties, etc., are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the
amount can be reasonably estimated

Receivable from financing sctivjties are recogrised on disbursement of loan to customers. The details of the policy are
given below:
Receivable fiom financing activities are classified as standard, sub - standard and doubtful assets and provided for as p€r
the Company s policy and Management's estimates, subject to the minimum classification ana p.oririonirg nor"s a" i".the Master DirectioD - Non-Barikiog Financial company - Non-systemicalry rEporrant No,-Deposit "[i"g co.puoy
(Reserve Baok) Directions, 2016.
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Non-Pcrforming Arsets (NPA)

Sub-Slandard Assets Remains NPA for a period up to
l8 months.

Rcmains sub-standird ibra period cxceeding
Doubtful Assets l8 months.

Asscts which are idertifiea u.i*. *""t
by lhe Company or th€ intemal audiior

or thc extemal auditor or by rhe

Rcscrvc Bnnk oflndia

Slandard Alsels (disclosed underContingcnt
provision againsl stdndard assets)

Non-Performing Ass€ts (NPA)

0.2s%

Sub-Slandard Assets z0% 20yo

DoubttulAssets l\%to 50% logyo

Loss Asscts 1OO% lO0%

-

d) Under exceptional circumstances, Management may aeoegotiate loans by rescheduling repayment terms for customers who
have defaulted in repayment but who appear willing and able to repay their loBos uoder a longer te.m agrceftent.
Rescheduled Standard Assets are classified / provided for as Sub-Standa.d Assers as per (b) above which classification /
provisiouing is retaiaed for a period of I year of satisfactory perforoaacc. Reschcduled Noo Performiog Assets arg trot
upgraded but are retained at the original classification / provisioning for a period of I year ofsatisfactory performance.

2.13 Operrtins cvcle

Asscts and liabilities are classified as current and non-current based on the operating cycle which has b€en estimated to b€ 12

mooths, All assets atrd liabilities which are expected to be realized aod settled, within a p€riod of 12 motrths Aottr the datg of
Balance sheet have been classified as cunent and other assets and liabilities a.e classified as non-current. All Non-Performing
Assets are classified as non-curTent.

/,
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''Ovcldue" refcrs to itrteresl and / or principal and or insBlmeot remaining upaid from the day it became receivable.

Provisioning norms lor loans:

Asset Clissificatio St€urrd
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3 Share Ca

USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN : U?4899DL1995pLCo69604

330, Mezzanirle Floor, Fuuctional Industri.l E tate, prtpsrg{Dj, Delhi_I10092
Notes to Finenci{l Stctements fo. th€ yerr EDded Mrrch 31, 2024

(Arnout h Lakhs)

I

Reconciliation of the shares outstatr at the

C). Dctails ofPromoter's Sh!

g aDd at (he end ofthe
As at Mrrch 31, 2023

B). Terms/rights rttached to shares
The company has only ore class of equity shares having a par va lue ol fu. l o per share. Each horder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per sharc. During the period cnded 3 I st March, 2024 the company did oot r€cognize ;ividend
as distaibulions to cquity shareholdels. ln the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to rec€ive the
reinainiig asset ofthe company after distfibution ofall preferential aooulrt in proportion to their sbares.

/)

ua
,/c

Parlicuhr
As ot March

31,2024
Ar.t Mrrch 31,

2023
Authorized

Equity Shares ofRs l0 Each( No's)
Equity Shares ofRs l0 Edch( Rs.)

lssred, subscribed & fully prid up share capitsl
Equity Shares ofRs l0 Each( No's)

Shares ofRs I0 Rs

2,60,00,000
2,600.00

1,05,E5,090
1,05E.51

2,60,00,000
2,600.00

94,tE,090
941.81

As at March 31,2024
Particulars (In No's) (%) (In Nors) (%t

As at the beginning ofrhe year
Add : During the yea.r

- firlly Paid Up
- Partly Paid Up

94,r 8,090

I1,67,000

941.81

I16.70

65,8r,685

28,36,405

65t.17

2E3.64

As at tbc €nd of the ycar 1,0s,E5,090 t,05E.51 94,18,090 94l.El

As ut Mrrch 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Name of Share H0lders (ln No's) (%\ (In No's) (%\

Rajesh Cupta
Anoop Garg
Geeta Goswami
BR HaDds Investnent Private
limited

27,31 ,25 t

r8,20,249
1,39,300

25.80%
t7.x0%
t.32%

t7.89%r8,93,405

2t,03,25 t

t8,14,249
l,3l,300

2E.-10./.

t9.260/0

1.39%

15.66%14,75,000
I0lal 65,84,205 622% 61,23,800 65.02Y;
7. Chrnge during the yesr
Rajesh cupta
Anoop Carg
Gecta Goswami
BR Hands lnvestment Private
limited 2.23y!

-2.90%
-2.01%
-0.0E%

t5.66%

-6A2%
-8.050/o

0.94%

lotal -I.tZ 2.1304

A& Qu*,q-,
,'bEI



As at March 3l ,2024 As at Marcb 31,2023
Name of Sharo Holdcrs

(Itr No's) V"l
Rajesh Gupta
Anoop Garg
BR Hands Investment Pr Ltd
Uninav Deyelopers Pt1 Ltd
Shitha GWta
Priya Garg

21,3t,251
1t,20,249
18,93,405

12,68,333
l 110,800
I r,01,500

25.E0%
t7.20%
t7.89%
I1.98%
10.590/0

t0.4to/o

21,03,251
t8,t4,249
14,75,000

12,68.333

5,60,300
5,47,000

2E.'t0./o

19.26%
15.66%

13.470/o

5.gso/o

5.8t%

D). Details of sharcholdcrs h more than 57o shrrc! in th€

4 Reserve & Surplus

5 Long Term Borrowing

Prrticulars As at March 31,2024

Curren( Non Current Current
D€bentur€3 (Secured)
-12% Non Conveflible

Debelltures
Term Irsns
S€cured Loans
-From Banks
-From Fimncial Institutions

Unsecured Loans
-Frcm Relatives
-From Finaocial lmtitutioos
.Frcm Corporate Entities

1,850.00

t,952.14
3,566.0t

I,728.0t)

I,69r.00
'7,200.91

4.14
136.02

2,023.70
5,710.60

t)6.02

895.00

1,882.26
7,t 50.l9

7.00
114.90

3,432.47
Total 7.368.15 10.760.07 11,042.32 13,481.E2

As at March 3l,2t23

No. 5

R

{z
tr

f

fb
Yo<

Particulars As at Mrrch
31,2024

As at March 31,
2023

A) Statutory Res
Opening Balance

ene u/s 4tIC of RBI Act, 1934

Statutory Reserves Fund
Closing Brhnce
B) Securities Premium
Op€nin8 Balance
Add: Addition durinS thc year

Closi[g balrnce
C) Profit& Loss AJc:-
Opening Balanc€
Add: Profit durinS the year
Less: Transferred to Reserve Fund u./s 45 IC of RBI Act 1934*
Clus b!lsnce
Bala clf to Brl shec TI t:rl (a+b+c

117.63
255.'t8

5l1.94
205.69

913.41 717.63

3,859.42
933.60

I,719,E I

2,139.6t
4,193.02 3,859.42

2,754.56
I,278.9t

255.78

I,931.E2
1,028.43

205.69
3,771.69 2,754-56
9,544.12 7J3r.6l

Name of Lend6r Rate ofinteresl Tcrm of
Redemptiou/Reps
yment

Non Current Current

Debentured Secur€d :
S€ries 'F S€cued Redeemable

Non Coovertible Dcbentur€

Series 'G' Sccured Rcdeemable
Non Convertible Debenture

Series'H' Secured Redeemable
Non Convertible Debenture

At thc timc of
Redcmption

At the time of
Redemption

At the time of
Rcdcrnplion

2.00

741.00

985.00

cr{
CE

a(b

^o//..)./

Non Currenl

3,112.00

lzyo

t2yo

tzvo
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I 
Series 'l Secured Redeenrabte

Non Convertible Dehennrr
Series'J' Secured Redeemable

Non Converlible Debenture
Series 'K' Secured Redeemable

Non Convertible Debenture

Secured Term Loans
trmE B&nks

Au Small Firance BaoI Limited
South Indian Bank Term tnan
South Indian Bank Tcrm Loan
South Indian Bank Term Loan
State Bank oflndia
HDFC CAR Loan
City Union Bank

From Financial Institutions

Un Tcrnr Lo:rns:
From Flnahcisl Institutions
From Relatives

t2%

t4.7yo

I t.oyo
I t.0%
lo.gyo
tt.tyo
8s%
to.6%

t20/.-15v.

9%

At the time of
Redemption
At the time of

At the time of

lRedemntion

Monthly

Montrly
Montily
Monthly
Montrly
Monthly
Monthly

Monrily

Quarterly
Repayable on

demand

700.00

650.00

500.00

93.05

629.91
26.44

980.45

3,566.01

0.00

0.00

0.00

55.56

149.E2

70.08
ll3.l2

1,0r0.00
6.76

195.4s

7 200.91

136.02

4.14

Note No. 5(ii)
Terns rtrd coDalitlons of s€cured loans and [ature ofsecurity
a. During the year tho company has issued following NCD as mentiorcd below-
- 500 Non convertibl€ Debenrures(series K) at the face value ofRs.100000 each aggregaring to Rs. 5,oo,oo,0oo at
the coupon rate of l2olo. Those NCDS will mature in Sepl 2026.

b. NCDS are seourcd by way ofcxclusive chargc on idcnlified pool of assets
c. Vehicle Loahs HDFC Bank w€rc secued against hypolhecatioo ofr€spective vehicles.
d Secued Term loans from Banks and Financial instilutions aro secured by hypothecadoo ofreccivablcs as per thcir
respectivc loan agtecments.

e Term [.oan form state bank of India & AU smalr Fina.ce Bank is firthe. secued by way of colateial secu.ity of
a Residenlial Propeny and TL from Ciry Union Bank is secured with Commercial prop€ny held by t FSL.

f. Tcrm loans from Grow Money capiral pvt Lrd, Arwar cerc.at Finance co pvt Lt4 MAs Fimncial Services Ltd,
TATA capital services Ltd and south Indian BaDk are fiEher secured by casb collareral io thc shap€ of Fixed
deposit/ sccurity dcposit as pcr their loan agreemenl in addition to hypothecation ofreceivables.

g. ln addition to the above' all secured loans are also secured by way personal guarantee of promoter dir€ctor.

6 Other Liabilitics

Note No. 6(i) Adl"ance EMI received against loan agreements are repayable/ adjusted ovea the period ofthe
conract.

o

E
t,

(\0
7

G-

Particulars _As at March 31,2024 As ra March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current

lnterest accrued on I-oan F6m-
Banl/NBFC but not due

Interest Payable on Debenture
Other Payable
Statutory Dues
Security Deposits atainst the

Loao Porttblio
lntffest Par,able on Security
Deposit

AdvaDcc EMI ercst Received

1,045.33

5.66

10.57

92.24

13.69
260.24

55.45

2,12a.47

t51.5't

80.72

t,512.21

42.80

72.33

90. t0

52.31

2t7.35
56.54

I,740.44

52.a2

19.47
Tot.l 1,061.s6 3,.102.38 r,687.34 2,229.03
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7 I'rovi$ioos

Particulars
As at NIrrch 31,202,1 As at Mari5-l,7oi-

Non Curretrt Crrr€trt CurreDt

Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Bonus

Provision for lncome Tax
Provision AgairEt Standard

Assets
Provision for SubstaDdard and

Doublful Asscls

)9.20 0.63

1.38

28.08

73.99

220.26

t3.27 0.42

t.32
20.79

E',7.72

68.25
Tolal 19.20 321.31 t3.21 178.50

8 Short Term Borrow

Note No. 8(i) The bank overdrafl facilities are secured against the FDR. However at the y6r-cnd ofthe curent
priod this account has a debit balance, so it is included in oash and cash equivalent.

9 Trade blr

9(i) Trlde blc Srh'idule for ar cnded 31.0:1.2024

'I rade P ble Schedule for :lr ended 31.03.2023

Than 3 Years

Thtll 3 Y€ars

e

/)

c*l'
DE',Hl

Particul:rrs As at Mrrch
31,2024

As rt Mrrch 31,
2023

Curent Maturity ofLong Term Borrowings (Refer Note no. 5)
Bank Overdraft Faciliry (Rcfer Nore No. 8(0)

10,760.07 13,4Et.82
227.26

Totrl 10,760.07 13,709.0E

Particul:rrs As at M.rch
31,2024

Ar .t M.rch 31,
2023

Total Outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises
Total Oulstanding dues other than Micro and Small Enterprises

2.39
45.09

2.78
66.31

Total 41.la 69.09

Outstrn for follow from du€ date of paymentsParticulars
Lcss thrn 1 Year l-2 Yesrs 2-3 Years

(i) MSME
(ii) Othe6
(iii) Dispured dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

3.27

2.39
41.82

Outstanding for follow ing periods from due date ofp.ymentsPxrtirulrrs
Less lhln I Year l-2 Ycars

(D MSME
(ii) Others
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Orhers

3.21

2.78
63.04

Notr Current

.\Nw

2-J Years



Perticular
As at iuarch

31,2024
As rt Mrrch 3I,

2023

Principal amount and lnterest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
as on
lnterest paid by the Company in lerms of Secrion I6 oflhe MSMED Act

along with the amounts ofthe payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day

The amount of interest due altd payable for the year ofdelay in making
paymcr[ (which have been paid but beyord rhe Bppointed day during rhe

) but without adding tbe interest sp€cified und€r this Act

The amount ofinterest accnred and remaining unpaid during th€ accounting

amount of fiuther inlerest remaining due and payable even in the
uccccdi,lg yeaN, until such date when the interest ducs above are actuallv

paid to lhe small entelprise for the purpose ofdisallowance as a deductible
ture under seclion 23 ofthis Act.

2.78

9(ii) Brsed otr the itrformltion avsirable as identified by rhe compsny, there are ccrtritr yendo* wbo heve
conlirmed that they are covered undcr the Micro, smau snd Medium Enterprrse, Deveropmetrt Act, 2006.
Disclosures rerating to dues of Micro rnd sma, clterprises under section 2iof,The Micio, srtral and
Medium Enterprises Drvelopmcnt Act,2006, are giv€n below:

a

d

14 Deferr€d Tar assets

15 Lorns & Advrtrces -Receivabl€s Uuder Finrnci

o
Nt

RE

=
C

Parliculars As st March
31,2024

As at March Jl.
2023

Tax effert of items ron$titrrting Drfcrrrd Tar Assets
Difference betwe€n book balance and tax balance of p.operty planl and
Equipments and Intangible Assets
Provision for Non Performing

Provision for Standard Assets
Provision for Graruiry

9.E9

55.44

1E.62

4.99

13.40

t7.lt

22.0t

0.00
Totil 88.94 52.66

As at March 3l 2021 As at March 3l 2023Particulars

Sccured
-Considered Good Assets
-Sub-Standard Assets
-Doubtful Assets
Utrs€cured
-Considered Good Ass€ts
-Sub-Standard Assets
-Doubtful Assets
-Write-ofT Assets

2.518.86

3,395.35

288.76

15,495.1I

8,185.12
l,100.l2

4,22t .24

5,985.90

10.01

9,299.38
681.44

0.1I

15,580.87

T0tul

Less: Loan Write-off 288.76

Net Assets after Write-off 5,9 r 4.21 21,781,55 r0,207.14 25,561.E0

Secured exposures are sccured wholly or pa(ly assets and/ or undcrtaking to createby way ofhypothecation of

IM,fiI

-ET'frtRr?fiIErll
E-nfir

-Erirrrl
E
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Particuhrs

Dcposit given/liened as security against borrowings
Interost Reo€ivable oB Security DE osil

lts

58.69
4.15

1.70

862
2

Total
E64

ffi W
rc

15 Other Non current Assets

l7 Cash & Cash ivalenl

l8 Other Curreol Assets

19 Rcvenoe from rations

20 oth

Particulrrs

and Other Fees
5,E62.1'l

459.43
4,025.E1

482.36'1'0trl
4,508.r7

obrl

3'l t-

Particulrrs

Cash-In-Hand
Balances with Banks
- In Curent Accounts

6.90

167.93

6.12

l.14
Tot:rl

Effi W

-0

rc
Particuhrs

31,2024 2023

Deposit give li.ned as secu ty against borrowings
hterest Accru€d on Security Deposit
Security D€posits
Olher Advances
Prepaid expcnscs

Incomc Tax Paid
TDS Recovcrable
GST Input
lnsuranc€ Claim Receivable

Interest Accnted on Loan & Advances but not dudReceiv€d 287.26
729.91
41.60

4.50
4.57
2.83
3.E7

5.73

8.68
5_55

t t5.41
8.40
6.20

16.55

2E6

4

3

13.3

2.t1
2.78

Tot,rl rIiE.rrn

-.E 

TB

Particuhrs As at March
3t,2024 2021

Inlerest income on FD/ Security Deposit against Borrowing
Bad Debts RecoveM

Profit/Loss on fixed assels

56.81
2.08

14.90

42.04

t3.52

Totrl 73.85 55.56

.L SER

](

020

/rq*

As-f)tlarcF5l]

AsEIIarcF
31,2024

As rfMircT-5[-
2023

Inlerest locomc from Financing Activitics

6322.20
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Particuhrs A3.t M.rc[
31,2021

As eiM-rcfTll
2q23

Salary

Staff Welfare
Dilectoa Remu[eaatiod
EPF- Adft inistration charges

EPF- Employe. contribution
ESIC-Employcr contribution
Bonus Provision
Cratuity Provision
lnccntive Ex

!60.82
5.ll

I t7 .93

0.50
l2.lt
0.65
1.73

6.81
4.51

t25,70
l. t3

107.20

0.39

9.58
0.45
1.02

2.49
0.13

Tol.rl 310.24 25tJ.09

2t Ex

22 ce Cosl

23

2,1 Provision & Write-off

Parliculars
As rt Mrrch

31.2024
AE rt M.rch 3I;

2023

(r 3.73)
t5 t.97
288.'t6

51.3r
-8t.75

r0.01
Total 427.00 -20.43

t_

0\o

oryctra) c

=
z.
\l-

As at Iihac
3t,2024

As rt M.rch 31,
2023

Int€test on Loan
Intcrest on FLDG
Intercst on OD Limit
Intcrest on Debenture(NcD)
Other Boffowi Costs

2,2t4.7'l
t95.34

9.47
503.46

54.70

t,479.20
113.85

9.95
423.t6
1,24.3t

Tolal 2,971.7 4 2,rs0.47

Particuhrs As at Msrc[
31,2024

As at MiFc[JfJ
2023

Depreciation on Tangible Assets
iation on lntangible Asscts

25.95

0.14
20.4r

2.48
Tot!l 26.69 22.a9

Provisioo on Slandard Assets
Provision on Sub-standard & Doubtful Assets
Loan Write offduring the pcriod

Qnr*"'L---

@
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Particuhrs As atMarctr
31,2024

Ar at March 3I;
2023

Business Promotion Expc[ses
Audit Fees

Professiooal & Techdcal Fees
Portfolio Management Fe€s

Reuair and Maintensnce
Computer repair & Mairrenance
Repair and Maintenance-Ceneral
lnsurance Expenses

Electricity expenses
Ba* Charges
Conveyaoce
Recruitment expenses
Omcc expenscs
Misc. Expenses

Postage & Couricr
Prifling & Stationery
Communication expeoses
Re -Omce & Braoches
Travelling Exp.
Fees Rates & Taxes
Starnp Duty Expenscs

Irterest on Inoome Tax and TDS

Profit/ Loss on Sale of Shares
Insurance Written Off

-ContributionSocial ibi

!5.58
1.82
0_36

2.61
t.a

23.95
24.70

2.09

0.98
1.40

17.08

0.80
3.32
5.51

5.54
l.l4
6.58

1.58

2.25

r28.90
,{41.5t

0.04
2.19
2.90
5.r5
0.52
5.73

r5.02
2.02
0.35
2.16
l.5l

24.39

t2.59
|3.t4
4.57

8t.86

5.O2

IE.I4
Total 9.19.98 172.2t

25

Note No.25(i): P.yment to Statutory Auditors
As tt March

31,2024
A5 rt M.rch 31,

2023
For Statutory Audit Fee
For Tax Audit Fee

For Othcr Scrviccs

t.75
0.25

0.25

1.75

0.25

Total 2.25

SE

2
R

Prrticulars
As !t Marctr

3t,2024
As rt MrrcflI;

2023

1,278.91

t,02,16,t42
t.028

E4,01,001

12.45 t2.24

|,278.91

1,278.91

t,02,76,142

1.028

1,028

84,03,00t

Particuhrs
Basic earninB pcr share
kofit after tax
Weighted average nurnber ofsharrs (For Basic EpS)
Ersic EPS. (In R!,)
Diluted erroiog per ihare
Profil after tax
Add/(less)i Effcct oidilutioD on profit
Revised profit afier lax
Weighted average nurnber of shares (For Diluted EpS)
Dilured EPs (ln Rs.)a t2.24

E?^v

+., a

o
(E
90rr,-,a rYo

z.--...2

4.79

t05.67
'122.t1

kP ^Y/
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ldriEtE!&
Tt' cooprv hi d o6litdix rd*r!. s&jiv.. d.6n d hocft 

'p&Erd 
pLa sEinr.lilibL.6rroF. Tr. prtd,Dvi.r..6.. tv6eM Frld b wr.il.oat F. r diE,d, d..r rtit.in .npror@r o. on r.mirnim ordnero,*r or @ur.qul!d.d ro 26 &). d; !.rnbrc i..*r' *oero,"i 1-, or *i*. i,**;"; ,e-;;il; ;ir*-J. r*,*,n.

'ompev 
dc nol r& uv MItib{lion. io sduiq nbrl! M{t rh. pt- lr *n oa"a mc co*p-y *eu.t t- ,L ti.lai y o. gorui , b.*f- D.r6h in .nc !&rc bc.d n e -t!ri.t ,,]Idio!,

Tr. d.d..a b.rft,a-.+-. rL C*r.!r r. r 16!&. of..i-rttl rit r b.tdi:
(r) Ill.Gr d{c A d.c@ h rh. bond iat.cir nrc *ilt i!.@lc rhc pl& li.biliry.

i.@it.rtu!lirbilit ,

ic, t"!*lt, dk 1b. pl&nr Y31w o, tlk 
'LrirEn 

b.ern ple l.rbnr] r cJccu.d by Gtg*. ro rh. bdr 6dd. ot6c bddir ofpL.,aicit.r, A. ioc,* ir oE tif. qrid&y or|n pbp{rioisE vill i*ce lb. pt tr . tir6iliry.

i! rho linrn.irl ir.t.Drnr in
(i) Chr.cain Aeo.lir Obli!.lio!

2023
Pelr ydu of oStg'iio! s rl rt. b.Si..i.S or lt. p.nod

17)

iii) r.irrlr ofpk!.s6
Fnrvrlu.ofpL sersrr th. b.Simrs ot rm Fnod

v.lu. ofpls akr. th..nd oflh.

(r9 8r)

'Doulrt 
ro b. B.anl4d ln blhr. ei ard rtd.d !!2ttn.

(Y) trp.u Ro!.12.d I. tr. thr.n.nr ot pDlil rnd hs

i! t[.rt{.o.ur olprolir & lu$.t
(l.l7l

No(cmot I'rbLlir,
t121

!) l-p..r of rh. (n.ig. In ditcount nr.
P.r* vrlucofODlltrlhn.ttho {d rfrh( pr;od

I llmpanducrod.r(scor050%
b) InDrdofrht cltrnk h i.lrn iDdos(

I I !q4Er de ro E@ or o.llr^ t.5r t.: I lm!&r dE ro .t .Be oI O Jo %

A D.n(d Coldb.ilo.flon

L r.od-e *i6 u. ErploJd r P,urid4r Fud .nd Mi..lbM pNti.iu6 aI. I 952.
cqnihri,. pka i! ritb bort dlplote3 ..d the Co-ta, rrt4 mnrhty co.ribu!* n
or..L b tt @plo)E 

'.wi.t 
d 6rn dxrirrrion (EPFO). Tn. q.t .xpss dornir.d ,,

ljllE (J t.0l_202t: R..9.t? tjtt )

uliBible .nlplut* of$e CqlF.y e d.irli ro leiw b.efb n nrpar ofF.vidd 6Dl r J€6Dr
r ryNi6ed ptGdtAu of rh. ddri (EClojd elry. Tt @d{idl s tci6.d uda rb. L*. &
.hc @tud of p@iii -d 16 dui6! nr ,* @ eBi of d.6nqt @tibo.i! Ch. tuGt b A, 12.5! t
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30 Dl*lo6u6 fo. oprhtLS t..M ud.r Acoultbg Srrnd.rd t9 _ -A..oMrb! tor l4$-
TIE Conpaoy hlr..Lrqj irto lce sd ttes aerdraoB for uting oficc ,,roiB otr 6r.l bsi, fq (l) @.th! crdi.8 in Ecbtuary 202E.

3l s{atrlt L.ponl.8

Ilt#li:ili::.*"8erl 
p'ioErirv in the b*in* orrandins,nd ar iE op{Etio6 ar. in rndia o.ry. A*rdi.try. rhe- e @ *Donr. Epori.brc a.8n nBsFaeernrsl,d.d

ll Di .losure olusuBe ofborro*ed llnds
Thc conFnv ha boNqed nitu tum difierenl b.nk & fimncial if,sliturioN &tr tieF ftr.rr hav. bc.n tuly urilt.d orry fo. 0E purpo$ fo. vhi.h rhey w@ ni&d

l{ R.l.t.d Prry Tr.rq.rids

(cy Mandg.h(nt PeNomrl ( K M P) Rar.dr Ouplr

C!96 Gosemi
\upu Cuph

Conp6ny Sdltl..y (f.ts22 !o ,an24)

Cohpsny S€ceisry Qe-24 !o tilt Dat,

Id!lq*!
Shi$a olllth

Entitics i. which KMP/ Rcladvus ofKMP can cr.d* siSnificanr influ.noc Sumcr ChMJ Cars HUF

n-upr lnfr{4h Prl Lld
UdDv D.wloD.6 Pw Lrd

l4Esh C!pla ltUf
4!12!!!!lrg t tUt,
wluv.sr Ctoiuk rnili. pv1. LtJ
E& H!.ds lr!6r,Mre pu Lrd
Pe!6' Ed!.om Priwr. Limibd
FEnk M.bls R<ycl.n rt1 Ltd

/)

18,t4

lE,l4

Nit

I l0t.l2 631 55
881.05 68.30Cos NPA s 7" or art
) 5*/"
2 81c/, t,1tvc

24.39

l.{jm Td A.t,196l / S.dioo !54
2021-42 58,88,420

oEr.Hl

e'JrU

*

eLVo "f*/

!2 C@lirg..rlLbni$6.rdcoodt..ott
TIE @rp'nv 

'wiwd t dmn<l tlo lh' lMrc Td D.!or,Ed fd 0E AY 2l-2? on l8/o]23. Tic comFtry dit d r8c wirn tu d.nlod r rhc E,( cqr$r.riE tr. tca doo. i@ne{y.Corpaay hq &btuncd lhe 6po* ad tr qpectcd b gcl. lavo@ble ords.

ncuroorup rtrrr cm,rF

Dindo.

Morhn of DiE6
oauetrr. or oieo.-

WiE of Dillfu
si,rroromroF
Wif. of Did&

Comer or rarrrcr oi omi-

Codrm.
Dic{o?s concm

rrimruts u,urrrctsc;;;-
Cm

C()!lllMDirEltr
C6hDn DiKror



€dllL! L rlhl KMP /
R.Ltlr6 ofKMP dr

0lt
098

5D.r5
81.50

517.15

35.00

ll79l
1t0.20

0.98

0.lr

8.00

700

l2_93

5.00

17.80

00?
290

7.00
t46_75

100
14.00

2_55

2.\4

4.00
l4 0{,

6.00
E.(x)

1,003,50

122.97
r t 8.0,

l,162.m
376.@

417_N
l,l9l.m

t,412.@
2.252.93

1.A7

2.t0

2.00
2t.00

l,l?1.00
2,267.91

38.05

48.91

4.00
?-00

t23.14
tzt.95

1,8E2.r5
604.25

957.15
1,240.00

t t1.9!
It0.20

6.40
4.55

t.t.00

1,173.00
2,262.9)

18.05

48.93

17.00

r0.00

12.91

,.00

r,0t0..10
721.E8

eollls ln rhkn KMP /

ll March,20:4
ll M.En.20?l

lrt ..ri o. NCD Pa}.b!.

ll March.:023

NCD
ll MEh, 2024
I I Meh, 2q2l

Uusurc.l Lrtr Tsk !
I I Maah,2024

3 t0
22-95

007 01,
0.24

1t.00
19.00

0.21

0.27

107.00
170.m

21.00
2t.m

2,92t.04

l.l0
12.95

0.;lt

lor.00
170.@

48.00

4.00
2,925,N

u RES

z

o

H

Datg._
dilt'v

Q*

? c\o
.rY'

9,00

rJl2.00
7,252.9i

DEI
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.('Lr

l!l.r6t otr lotr Pryrbie
ll M@h,2024
ll M@h.2021

3l Mel\ 2024

I I Maruh.:024
I I Mary\ 2023

0 t6

t. tl

tl t3

1,0

0. t5
13.tr

l- t0

t. t3
0.34

6

35 Di!.Io.!r. u ri8litLut r.tiG

* ih.F m ritnilicafl .hang6 in mrio duc lo siSnifiqnt i

M.r!r.202{ Mr.3r. 202.3

D. S.Ni.. Cotm!. R io

Nd .Tinl tum6 ratio

t.8l
l.7l
t.58
0.14
0,52
0.20
0.l5

l.5t
2.99
t.66
0.t6
o.46
0.21
0.,5

0.14
{.rJ
-0.05
-01.1

0.t4
4.1I
002

L Clrrc l€tio = Culfur A$d / C@nr Lidbitity
2. D.bt-Euhy Farion = Totil D.bl / (rod Debr + Equity)
I Nr SCFE. Covsg. Rluo - EBITDA / Frdtre Con
4 R.Lm on f4rily Rario = Pront An( T.r / AvcBgc Equly
5. Ncr Crprr.l Tunov€r Rauo = llcv.nuc fioo ()pcnltons / (C@trr A*l . C@nl Liabitiry)
6 N.r Potu R.rio = PDfit Afier Tu / R.v.nuc frcn op.6u6
?. R!{b otr Clpit l E,ployed = EBIT/ Av.6ge (Equrty + D.bi)

36 Discldor€ $ p.. RBl Norific.tis. -v.rlor Diraliotr - R.sen c Brnk or l.di. (Non-A.nkitrB Fi!.fti.t Comp.n, - $st. s.&d R.Eut tim)

!6.1 E!D..uc !u r(tl err.e rNtor
TncE i. rD c{ftw to @l €star. stor

16.2

.ooc ol ahich 
's 

hrt qcluivcly invesl.d io .orF,6tc d.bli

(ii) A&ec.s lgiinrt'haEs / bo.ds / d.b. @. or othcr suincs oron clcJn blsE to individuk rbr irEslest in 3hu6
(including ltor / tsofr, conlerrible bondr, convctublc dcbc.t4s. and unl\ ot dtuiry{ncnlcd morul f@.,sj

any otcr purpos6 whcrc sharcs or .oovcniblc bondr or .oovcnibb dcbcrtur6 or ui6 of cquity odcnt rt
nuul fu&.,! l,Ln d pfltrEry seuityi

sy orl.r pupcB ro ln. .I.ot s{u!d by dE @ltarcdt strity of sh.&s or @wribl. bod! o.
.Ltnllc q hitt of €quity ori..tql @rul 6xds i... wherc lh. pri@ry suiry ortEr lt tr sb,B / oavdribL

/cdvlfiibl.d.betrr6 / eil! of.quity oric cd rutlal nulds <i6 not tulty.oq rlE odrrnGi
iv) Sftlr.'l rnd uwur.d adEoca b dEkbrot 6 $d gtl,mt6 iss&d on b.hltf ot.!@t b.otd ald Ertcl @t6:

(vi) Bridgr loN ro cooFnies agaid crp.cl.d .quily ,lows / iss@r:

!ii

36J Se.tor wise Non performing .$€ts- N PA.

Crd NPA {Ilr)
AEiculnnc E Ani.d Acrivirts I-E.

120
7 tlyo

MSNlT ?.16J.54 l .t2 5.5).A
Uns.cued Puren Lo.ns

1.10I.3,

6
/,

ov2

.r4101

Itst\tE
l7.tr2

6nr 55

0 00%

4

2

c,
9
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o
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36rt uBb.dgcd fd.ig. .u.r.ncy elpsr.e
Tberc @ m foeign Mcrcy eryosue

r6.5 Summry infornltior o. cobpl.i i R.eird b! rtu NBFC! rion customdg,nd rroh lhc ottift, otombu.lstuo

I

2

l

II

5

lll ToD fvr sroundr ofcoDDhinrs rcceiv..t by the \BFC, from.usromcB
2t)24

pcndiry rt tht begi.ditrB Nuhbcr ol comphitrr' reeivcd
!!4!g lhc year

7r ircrcrr./ .larcas. l.
the luDb€r ofcooplrlnt
receiv€d ov$ the pr.viou. Nuober of @Ephillt p.ditr3 .r

tn€ Erq ortne rdrI

plrruhg rr rbc b.Bin ng Number of sompl.iDG rc.rivert

% Incr€.d rler.e ir
tne rumberofomphi s
ftceived lvcr ft. pr.viu NrbUer ofoEDkhr! pe.dttrg .t

I

I
l. F.tc Lous Provided

I I000/"

37 Oth.t disclo.!rcrirtornaiiotr
Addilioml iofornarion rcquircd as pcr Schcdul.II of (rc CoBparics Acr,20ll
(i) DctdL otben.Di properb h€td
No p@e.dings havc bon iniriared o. a.c pe.ding aeainsr rhc Co(pany as ar Marcb 1t.2024 i.or holditrs b€mmj p@peny Mdr rls Be@mi TdterioN (prchibitio.) &r (45of t 9s8), $mnd.d.nd rules mnde therennder

Thc conp y is nol delarcd wiUtul d€tirnlrer by any b!d., fercial in$imlior or lddq s al Mbnh I r 2024

(Ui) Rclrtio$hip vitt .hck or conpr.iuj
Therc uc oo lrdsscrioN @& by rhe Corpay duing UE y6, wilh srucl( otf compani.s as .l M.rh 3l ,2024.

(iv) ComDliatre sith !{hber of l.yeE ot comp.nie3
Th€ Compsry do.s nol hn!. ay $bsidiary or A$ociate or Joint Venture company duirg rhc yd

(v) conpurn.t ld$ lpprovrd rhm{{9 or.rrrngr@uc

lhis .laue is .ot applicable lo thc .ompany.

SER

t-
eebE$"

,---'\\

A3 ri M!.11,2024 As rl Mrr3l.2023
0 0
7

7 6OutOt IIC NtsFC

0

h r€ceived by NBFC lrod Omce of Ombud.mn

2oz4 2023Hsircd by thc NBFC fron Oflice ofOnbudsnmof ft ainr.i@ble compllnm

Ls reslv.d in fi\ou ut the N BFC by Onicc ot On$u.,smn

I , imb.r of cohpl.ids rslved rhro*n corcil riio .dvisories issu€d by Oflice ot-OmbudsoEo

020

Q.n vco'Q'_

3

1

DE'.HI \r9/*

I



(vi) Utilialior or borrored fu b .nd rha.. p.eEiuln
At E pln of noml lending busine$, lhe .omPa.v ehnl', l@s ard advrnG on $o bst oa le.urily/gumtee provided by the Botovq/co-bormw.r, rhese i.dsadim de cdrtuct€d afr

beh'lr of the Funding Panv (UlliMr. Bencficia.id) o. (b) provide any gua.anEc, se.u ly oruc tile oi;ha[oitt€ ultimare benefi€iaris

(vii) Undikl6ed ircoDc
The coopanv &es not have &v Nrd€d r@scliotrs io the boots oi accounr which hale bten srendEred o. di$los.d s tn orc .luiry rhe ysr in lh. r,x N*@nr undd rhe rn.o@ T*

(vlx) TmM{ctloN i! (ypto.ErErcy or virtut cllr.m.y
Tlle Codpsny hd oot t6{ted or invested i, .ryplo curcncy o. vi.tut .tremy ddtr8 tnc y@ etrd.d Meh 3 t, 2024.

(it) R.vrh.tio. orDropc.ty, ptr.t & €quipmoi $d int.ngtbte,ser
Th. co$p&y tas rol daluql its popqtv, plet &d .luipoenl (i.cludins riglr.f-ue Nrs) or intarS,blc asets or borh.tiuing rh. ys cn&d M@n 31.2024.

(r) Regislr.tiotr ol.b.rg€r or .lGfa.tion wijt R.gi.tnr ot Cohplni$
Thce re m chrrC6 or erisfadiotr wnich @ pendi.a ro b€ EBisrc@d with dE R.gishr of Compmies G otr M!rch I t.2024.

18 Prel,iom yer lieurs have be.n resroup.rUrect,ssitied to cofirm to rurre.l yefi ctesiti.,iion

Ar !.r ou repo.1 ol cvm date For .M on beh.lf ot thc Bocr.l of Dlrkrorr
USHA FTNANCIAL SER}'ICES LIMITED
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USHA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN : U7it99DLl99SpLC068604

330, M.z2..hc Ftoor, Fulcflon l ll(lurartst Ertitc, p.tp.rgrnj, Dchlrr00gt
Notli to fln.,lct.t Slatumcnrs Io. th. y.sr EdedM.rcn 31,2024l0 ?rop.ny, PLlr.!d Equlprlt

V.l .ltr Fr* holr knd

Gro$ Ab.t

Ac.udrl.r.d D.p.Ri!rio.

lli,t3 26.9I l8,1.Sl 1,12.r9
l8{ o-oo 4t 12

12,48
701.6r
l2

27.t5 913J2

21.59

21 l5 21_15
l.ll.l0 I9l.t I

1,59 l.ll l6_35 11.E1

51.65

lt

l2

15.0t

l.t3

3r.03lo2.

Pmtdr rlmpodily sFnd.d

t1.03102.1

Prcjsls !.npomrily ssp.ndcd

t16.26 t46.26

I .rgllrl..rFlt Und.r

11.031024

PrcjecB t mpodrily s6Ftuled

31,0!J0rl

Iojtct! r.npotuily rurcnde.l

0.26

pw"'

uil^;
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a ab
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